b SINOPHIL

#" CORPORATION

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Building, FIDSA Greenhills
Mandaluvong City. Metro Manila

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statemuents for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012, inciuding the additional components attached therein, in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting $tandards. This responsibility includes designing and implementing internal
gontrols relevant to the preparation and [air presentation of the consolidated [inancial statements
that are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policics, and making accounting estimates that arc reasonable in the
circumsiances.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the
same 10 the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velave & Ca., the independent audilors, appointed by the stockholders has exaruincd
the consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in its report w the stockholders, has expressed its wpinion on the fairness of
E] n upon completion of such examination.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Dircetors
Sinophil Corporation

Sth Floor, Tower A

Two E-Com Center. Palm Coast Avenue
Mall of Asia Complex, CBP-1A, Pasay City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statemonts of Sinophil Corporation and
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statemunts of financial position as al

December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements
of changes in equity and statements of cash flaws for each of the three ycars in the period ended
December 31, 2013, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management's Responsibility for the C ansolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Siandards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to cnable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are {re¢ from materia] misstatement, whether duz to traud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedurcs to obtain sudit avidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the consclidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstaternent of the censolidated financial staternents,
whether due to fraud or error. Tn making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidaled financial statcments in
order 1o design audit procudures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
cxpressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the entity’s intemal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriatencss of accounting policies usud and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall prescntation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
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Opinlon

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and
their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in the pericd ended
December 31, 2013 in aceordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYQ & CO-

Qacrerer I Rangarsssy
Clairma 1. Mangangey
Partner
CPA Certificate No, 86898
SEC Accreditation No. 0779-AR-1 (Group A),
February 2. 2012, valid unti) February i, 2013
Tax Identification Neo. 129-4 34-R67
RIR Accreditation No. 08-0N1UYE-67-2012,
April 11,2012, valid until April 10, 2015
PTR No. 4225148, January 7. 2014, Makati City
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SINOPHIL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash in bank (Note 17) £4925,039 B789 884
Reeeivables and others (Notes 2, &, [5and 1 7) 26,201,799 30,036,723
Other asset (Note 15) 65,501,280 -
Totzl Current Assets 92,628,118 30,826,607
Noncurrent Assets
Available-Tor-sale financial asscts Noles 2, 9. 15 and 17) 1,580,820,800 1,601,621,337
Investment properties (Notes 10) 394.210,452 394,210,452
Total Noncurrent Asscls 1,975,031,252 1,995,831,989

2,067,659,370  R2,026,658,596

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (Notes 11 and 1 7) ®33,321,503 P53,367,070

Income tax pavable (Note [4) = 2,854,689
Total Current Liabilities 53,321,563 36,221,759
Noncurrent Liability
Due to Belle Corporation (Mote 15) 179,011,579 105,650,145
Equity
Capital stock (Notes 2, 12 and 17) 7,927,310,000 7.927.310,000
Addirional paid-in capital (Netes 2 and 17) 2,039,727,799  2,039,727,79%
Subscription receivable (Notes 12 and 17) (4,962,580,586) (4,962,6553,586)
Cost of Parent Company shares held by a subsidiary (Note 12) (512,594,197)  ({512,594,197)
Other reserves (Notes 2 and 9) 315,951,763 336,752,502
Deficit (Note 17) (2,972,488,493) (2,963,753,826)
Net Equity 1,835,326,288 1,864,786,692

_ ®2,067,659,370 _ B2,026,638,596

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Finanels! Siatements.

AN



SINOPHIL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
INCOME
Interest income from cash in bank B1,043 #1,160 B61>
Gain on Hguidating dividend (Note 93 = 33,524,175 -

1,043 33.325.335 613
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

EXPENSES (Note 13) (8,735,710 (6,913,678) (6,437,543)

PROVISION FOR DMPATRMENT OF
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Note 9)

(1,585,088,316)

(240,000)

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

PROVISION FOR CURRENT INCOME TAX
{Note 13}

(8,734,667)

(1,558,076,65%)

9,376,689

{6,676,928)

KET LOSS

QTHER COMPREHEXSIVE INCOME (L55)
Mark-to-market gains (losses) on available-for-sale
financial assets during the year (Note 9)

(8,734,667 (1.568,053.348)

(20,800,737)

94,833,460

(6.676,928)

17.937,804

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR

(8219,535.404) (P1,473,219.888)(R21.260.876)

Basje/Diluted Loss Per Common Share (Note 16)

i

(R0.00112)

(20.20179)

{£0.00086)

See secompanying Nater to Corsolidoied Financial Staiements.
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SINOPHIL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIFES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31
2013 2072 2001

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
L.oss before incore tax (#8,734,667) (P1,558,676,659) (PG,676,928)
Adjustments for:

Provisions for impairment of:

Receivables and others (Notes 8 and 13) 156,937 141,562 244,477
Available-Tor-sale financial assets {Nowe 9) - 1,385,088,316 240,000
Interest income from cash in bank {1,043) (1,160} (615)
Gain on liguidating dividend - (33,324.173) -
Working capital adjusimen;s;
Deerease in receivables and others 11,438,141 13,078,499 5,720,149
Inctease (decreasy) in accrued EXpernsug
und other current labilities (45,867) 248,229 562,324
Income taxcs paid (2,854,689) (6,522,000) -
Interest received 1,043 1,160 6i3
Net cash provided by operating activities 60,155 33,772 80,022
CASH FLOW FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
Collections of subscription receivable {Note 12) 75,000 337,500 75,000
NET INCREASE IN CASH IN BANK 135,155 371,272 165,022
CASH IN BANK AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 759,884 418,612 253,590
CASH IN BANK AT END OF YEAR B925.030 P789 884 B4 18,6]24

Sec wecompanyirg Notes to Consoliduted Fingncial Sratements
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SINOPHIL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l.

General Information

Corporste Information

Sinophil Comoration (“*Sinophil” or “Parept Company™), incorporated and registered with the
Philippine Securitics and Exchange Commission (SEC) as Sinophit Exploration Co., Inc. on
November 28, 1993, was originally organized with oi] and gas exploration and development as its
primary purpose and investments and development as among its sccondary purpuses. On

June 3, 1997, the SEC approved Sinophil's application for a change in its primary purpose from
oil and gas exploration and development to investment holding and real estate development.
Beginning 1998, Sinophil repositioned iiself as an investment holding company. The Parent
Company, a publicly-listed company traded in the Philippine Slock Exchange (PSE), was 44,1%
owned by Belle Comporation (*Belle™) and the rest by the public as of December 31, 2012,
During 2013, Belle’s effective ownership interest in Sinophil increased to $8.1% afier Bequisition
of interests by its wholly swned subsidiaries.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of \he Parent Company
and Foundatiun Capital Resources, Ine. (FCRI) and Sinophil Leisure and Resorts Corporation
(SLRC), both wholly owned subsidiaries and incorporated in the Philippines. Sinophil and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred ta as “the Company™) have an investment portfolio consisting of
interest in gaming and real cstate entities.

The registered office address of the Company is 3th Floor, Tower A, Two E-Com Center, Palm
Coast Avenue, Mall of Asia Complex, CBP-14, Pasay City.

Authorization for the [ssuange of the Counsolidared Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial slalements were authorized for issue in accordance with
a resolution of the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 11, 2014,

(L%

Share Swap Apresment (“Swap Agrecment™)

In 1997, Sinophil together with Belie (then a 32% shareholder) entered into a Swap Agreement
with Paxell Limited and Melroplex Berhad (both Malaysian companies, collectively referred 1o as
“Metroplex™) whereby Stnophil issued 3,870,000,000 of its common shares in exchange for
46,381,600 shares of Legend International Resort H.K Limited (LIR-HK), a Hong Kong-based
company, which is a subsidiary of Metroplex.

On August 23, 2001, a Mcmorandum of A greement (MOA) was entercd into by and among Belle,
Sinophil, Metroplex and LIR-HK rescinding the Swap Agrecment and cancelling all obligations
stated therein and reversing all the transactions as wel] as returning all the objcets thereof in the
following manner;

8. Moetroplux shall surrender the centificates of Sinophil shares held by them in relation 1o the
Swap Agreement. Belle shall then cause the reduction of the capital stock of Sinophil to the
extent constituting the Sinophil shares of stock surrendered by Meiroplex and the cancellation
and delisting of such shares from the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE).
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b. Sinophil shall surrender the LIR-IIK shares back to Metroplex.

In view of such definite plan to rescind the Swap Agreement through the MOA or other means.
Sinophil discontinued using the equity method in accounting for its investment in LIR-HK starting
from LIR-HK s fiscal vear beginning February 1, 1999,

On February 18, 2002, the stockholders approved the cancellation of 3,870,000,000 shares held by
Metroplex. However, Metroplex failed to deliver the stock certificates for cancellation covering
the 2,000,000,000 sheres of their total shareholdings. The Parent Company again presented 10 its
stackholders the reduction of its authorized capital stock to the extent of 1,870,000,000 shares,
which were already delivervd by Metroplex. On June 3. 2003, the stockholders approved the
cancellation and delisting of the 1,870,000,000 shares. On March 28, 2000, the SEC formally
approved the Company’s application for the capital reduction and cancellation of the
1,870,000,000 Sinophil shares. The application to delist the said sharcs was also approved by the
PSE.

As a result of the cancellation of the shares, investment in LIR-1IK was reduced by

£2,807.8 million in 2006. The corresponding decrease in capital stock and additional paid-in
capital, and share in cumulative translation adjusunents of an associate amounted to
B1,870.0 million, ®1,046.9 million and P109.1 million, respectively.

As further discussed in Note 8, in 2007, the Parent Company acquired LIR-HK's loan from Union
Bank of the Philippines which was secured by the 1,000,000.000 shares of Sinophil held by
Metroplex for a total consideration of 81,6 million. Upon acquisition, an application for capital
reduction and cancellation of 1,0{0,000,000 Sinophil shares was filed with the SEC afier
obtaining stockholders' approval (see Note 12},

On June 24, 2008, upon obtaining the approval of the SEC, the 1,000,000,000 Sinophil shares in
the name of Metroplex were cancelled. As a resuir, investment in LIR-HK was reduced by
11,501.5 million in 2008 (see Note 9). The corresponding deerease in capital stoek, additional
paid-in capital and share in cumulative wranslation adjustments of an associate amounted io
11,000.0 millien, £559.8 millien and ®58.3 million. respectively (see Note 12). In 2009, the
Paremt Company applied with the SEC for further decrease of its authorized capital stock for
1,000,200,000 shares. This application was approved on July 9, 2009 by the SEC (se¢ Note 12).

In 2009, Metroplex filed before the Court of Appeals (CA) to review the Order of the SEC
denying their petition to nullify the approval ol the reduction of the capital stock of the Parent
Company. Petition was elevated (o the Supreme Court (SC) after the CA sustained the SEC ruling
{see Notes 7 and 19).

As at March 11, 2014, the remaining 1,000,000,000 undelivered Sinophi! shares were transferred
to apothur entity after the said shares have been foreclosed and successfully auctioned by the
creditor of Merroplex. Consequently, the Company recognized full impairment l6ss amounting to
£1,501.5 million in the 2012 consolidated stalement of comprehensive incoms equivalent to the
remaining baok value of its investment in LIR-HK {se¢ Note 9),
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Basis of Preparation und Consolidation and Statement of Compliance

Basis of Preparation

The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis,
except for available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets which arc measured at fair value (sce Note 9).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when
otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financiz! statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company
and its subsidiaries, FCRI and SLRC (see Note 1).

The subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acyuisition. being the date on which the Parent
Company obtains control, and comiinue 1o be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

The tinancial statements of the subsidiarics are prepared for the same reporting year as the Parent
Company using consistent accounting policies. All intercompany balances, transactions, income
and expense and profits and losses from intercompany transactions are eliminaied in full upon
conselidation.

Changes in Accounting Pelicics and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statemenis are
consistent with those of the previous tinancial year, except for the following amended Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS), PFRS and Philippine Interpretations from International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (IFRIC) which were adopted starting January 1, 2013,
Except as otherwise indicated, the adoption of the following amended standards did not have any
impact on the financial statements of the Company.

* PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Presemation of ftems of Other Comprehensive
Invome or OCI {Amendments) - The amendments 1o PAS | inroduced a grouping of iems
presented in OCI. Items that will be reclassified (or “recycled™) to profit or loss at a future
point in time (for example, upon derccognition or settlement) will be presented separately
from items that will never be recycled. 'The amendments affect presentation only and have no
impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.

»  PAS 19, Employee Benefits (Amendment) - Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental
changes such as removing the carridor mechanism and the concept of expecied returns on plan
assets to simple clarifications and rewording. The revised standard also requires new
disclosures such as, among others, a sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial
assumption, information on asset-liability matching strategivs, duration of the defined beneftt
obligation, and disaggregation of plan asscis by nature and risk.

» PAS 27, Separate Financial Statemenis (as revised in 2011) - As a consequence of the new
PTRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities, what remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled
entities (JCEs), and associates in separate financial statements.
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PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Venrures (as revised in 2011) - As a consequence
of the new FFRS 11, Joinr Arrangements and PTRS 12, PAS 28 has been renamed PAS 28,
Investments in Associates and Juint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity
method to investments in juini ventures in addition 1o associates.

PERS 7, Financial mstruments: Disclosures - Qffsetting Finaneial Assets and Financial
Liabitities (Amendments) - The amendment requires an entity to disclose information about
rights ol set-off and related arrangements (such as collateral agreements). The new
disclosures are required for all recognized financial instruments that are set-of! in accordance
with PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presemtarion. These disclosures also apply to
recognized financial instruments that are subject o an enforeeable master netting arraagement
or *similar agreement’, irrespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with PAS 32,
The amendments require entities w disclose, in & tabular format, unless another format is more
appropriate, the following minimum guantitative information. This is presented separately for
financial asscts and financial liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period:

2. The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilitics;
b. The amounts that are s¢1-off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining
the net amounts presented in the statement of finaneial position;
¢. The net amounts presented in the statement of financial position;
d. The amounts subject 1o an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
that are not otherwise included in (b) above, including:
- Amounts refated to recognized financial instruments that do nol meet some or all of
the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
- Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and
¢. The net amount after deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounty in (c) zbove.

The amendment affects disclosures only and has ne impact on the Company’s financial
position or performance.

PFRS 10, Consolidaied Financial Starements - PERS 10 replaces the portion of PAS 27.
Consolidated and Separate Finuncial Statements, that addresses the accounting for
consolidated financial statements. It also includes the issues raised in Standard Industrial
Classification (S1C) - 12, Consolidasion - Special Purpese Entiries. TFRS 10 eslablishes a
single control model that applies to all entities including special purpuse entitics. The changes
introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine
which emitics are contralled, and therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent,
compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27,

PFRS 11, Joint Arrangemenis - PFRS 11 replaces PAS 31, Interests in Joimi Ventures and
S1C-13, Jainth-controlled Entities - Nemmonetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11
removed the optien to account for JCEs using proportionate consolidation. Instead, JCEs that
meet the definition of a joint venture must be seeounted for using the equity method.

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities - PFRS 12 sets out the requirements for
disclosures relating to an entity's interests in subsidiarics, joint arrangements, asso¢iates and
structured entities. The requirements tn PFRS 12 are more comprehensive than the previously
existing disclosure requirements for subsidiaries (for example. where 2 subsidiary is controlled
with less than a majority ol voting rights). PFRS 12 affeets disclosures only and has no
impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.
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PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement - PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance under
PFRS for all fair value measurements. PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to
use fair value, but rather provides guidance on how to measure fair value under PFRS.

PERS 13 defines fair value as an exit price. PFRS 13 also requires additional disclosures. As
a result of the guidance in PFRS 13, the Company re-assessed its policies for measuring fair
valucs, in particular, its valuation inputs such as non-performance risk for fair value
measurement of liabilities. The application of PFRS 13 affeets disclosures only and has no
impact on the Company’s financial pesition or performance.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
- This interpretation applies to waste remova! (siripping) costs incurred in surface mining
activity, during the production phasc of the mine. The interpretation addresses the accounting
far the benefit from the stripping activity. This new interpretation is not relevant to the
Company',

The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2009-201| cycle) contain non-urgent bul necessary
amendments to PFRSs. The Company adopted these amendments for the current year.

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Sraiemenis - Clarification of the requirement for
comparative information - These amendments clarify the requirements for comparative
information that arc disclosed voluntarily and those that are mandatory due to retrospective
application of an accounting policy, or retrospective restatement or reclassification of items in
the financial statements. An entity must include comparative information in the related notes
to the financial statements when it voluntarily provides comparative information heyond the
minimurn required comparative period, The additional comparative period does not need 1o
contain a complete set of financial statements.

PAS 18, Property, Plant and Equipment - Clussification of servicing equipment - The
amendment clarifies that spare pants, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment should be
recognized as property, plant and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment and should be recognized as inventory if otherwise.

PAS 32, fax effect of distribution to holders of equity imstruments - The amendment clarifies
that income taxes relating to distributions 1o equity holders and to wansaction costs of an
equity transaction are accounted for in accordance with PAS 12, Income Taxes.

PAS 34, /nterim Financial Reporting - Interim financial reporting and segment information
Jor total assets and ligkilities - The amendment clarifies that the total assets and liabilitics for
a particular reportable segment need to be disclosed only when the amounts arc regularly
provided 1o the ¢hief vperating decision maker and there has been a material change from the
amount disclosed in the entily's previous annual financial stalements for that reportable
serrnent. The amendmemn affoets diselesures only and has no impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance.

PFRS |, First-time Adoption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs - The amendment clarifies that, upon
adoption o PFRS, an entivy that capitalized borrowing costs in accordance with its pravious
generally accepted accounting principles, may carry forward, without any adjustment, the
amount previously capitalized in its opening starement of financial position at the date of
trangition. Subsequent to the adeption of PFRS, borrowing costs are recognized in accordance
with PAS 23, Borrowing Cosis. The amendment does not apply to the Company as it is not a
first-time adopter of PTRS.
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Future Changes in Accounting Folicies

The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations enumerated below when
these become cffective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company dees not expect the adoption
of these new and amended PFRS and Philippine [nterpretations to have significant impact on its
consolidated financial slatements.

»  Amendments to PFRS 10, PFRS i2 and PAS 27 - [nvestment Enities. Thesc amendments are
affective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, They provide an exception
to the consolidation requirement for entities that mect the definition of an investment entiry
under PFRS 10, The exception to consolidation requires investment entities to account for
subsidiaries a1 fair value through profit or loss.

s PAS 19, Employee Benzfits - Defined Banefit Plans: Employee Coniributions (Amendments).
The amendinents apply to contributions rom empleyees or third parties to defined benefit
plans., Contributions that are set out in the formal terms of the plan shall be accounted for as
reductions to current service costs if they are linked to service or as part of the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit asset or liability if they are not linked to service,
Contributions that are discretionary shall be accounted for as reductions of current service cost
upon payment of these contributions to the plans. ‘The amendments to PAS 19 are to be
retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014.

»  PAS32, Financiul Instrumenis; Presentation - Offserting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (Amendments) - The amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospectively applied for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014. The amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to sct-oiT” and also clarify the application of the PAS
32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which
apply gross settlement muchanisms that are not simultaneous.

*  PAS 38, Impairment of Assels - Recoverable Amont Disclosures for Non-Financial Axsets
{Amendments) - These amendments are effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2014 with earlier application permitted, provided FFRS 13 is also
applied, These amendments remove the unintended consequences of PFRS 13 on the
disclosures required under FAS 36. In addition, these amendments require disclosure of the
recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-gencrating units (CGUs) for which impaiment loss
has bzen recognized or reversed during the period.

o PAS 39, Financial nstrumenis: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Contination of Hedge Aceounting (Amendments) - These amendmuenis are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014, These amendments provide relief from
discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of'a derivative designated as « hedging
instrument meets certain criteria.

*  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies (TFRIC 21) - IFRIC 21 is ciltetive for annual
periods beginning on or afler January 1, 2014, [FRIC 21 clarifies that an entity recognizes a
liability for a levy when the activity that triggers payment. as identified by the relevant
legislation, oceurs. For a levy that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold. the
imterpretatrion clarifies that no liability should be anticipated before the specified minimum
threshold is reached.
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s PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - PFRS 9, as issued. reflects the first and third phases of the
project to replace PAS 39 and applies to the classification and measurement of financial asscts
and liabilities and hedge accounting, respectively. Work on the second phase which relate to
impairment of financial instruments, and the limited amendments to the ¢lassification and
measurement model is still ongoing, with a view to replacing PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9
requires all financial assets to be measured «l fair value at initial recognition. A debr financial
asset may, if the fair value option (FVO) is not invoked. be subsequently measured at
amortized cost if it is held within a business iode! that has the objective to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows and fts contractual terms give risc, on specified dates, to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal cutstanding. All
other debt instruments are subsequently measurcd at FYPL. All equity [inancial assets are
measured at fair value either through OCT or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for
trading must be measured at FVPL. For Jiabilities designated as at FVPL using the fair value
aption, the amount of change in the fair value of a liabilily that is attributable to changes in
credit risk must be presented in OC1. The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in
profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change reluting to the entiry’s own credit
risk in OCI would create or cularge an accounting mismaich in profit or loss. All other PAS
39 classification and measurement requirements for financial labilities have been carried
forward into PFRS 9. including the embedded derivative bifurcation rules and the criteria for
using the FVQ. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Company’s financial asscts, but will potentially have no
impact on the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.

PFRS 9 currently has no mandatory effective date. PFRS 9 may be applied before the
completion of the limited amendments so the classification and measurcment model and
impaiment methodology. The Company will not adopt the standard before the completion of
the limited amendments and the second phase of the project.

*  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreemems for the Construction of Real Estate - This
interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontraclors. The interpretation
requires that revenue on construetion of real estate be recognized only upon completion,
excepl when such contraet qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11
or involves rendering of services in which ase ruvenue is recognized based on stage of
completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction materials and
where the risks and reward of ownership arc transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis
will 2lso be accounted for based on stage of completion. The SEC and the Financial
Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) have deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until
the final Revenue standard is issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (LASB)
and an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue standard against the practices of
the Philippine rcal cstate industry is completed.

The Company continues to assess the impact of the above new, amended and improved accounting
standards and interpretations effective subsequent to December 31, 2013 on iis consolidated
financial statements in the periad of initial application. Additional disclosures required by these
amendments will be included in the Company's financial statements when these amendments are
adopted.
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Annual Improvements 1o PFRS (2010-2012 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2010-2012 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

»  PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Condition. The amendment revised the
definitions of vesting condition and market condition and added the definitions of
performance condilion and service condition to clarify various issues. This amendment shall
be prospectively applicd to share-based payment transactions for which the grant date is on or
afier July 1, 2014,

" PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Contingent Consideration in a Business
Combination. The amendmen ciarifies that a contingent consideration that meuts the
definition of 2 financial instrument should be classified as a financial liability or as equity in
accordance with PAS 33, Contingent consideration that is not classified as equity is
subsequently measured at fair value through protit or loss whether or not it fulls within the
scope of PAS 39. The amendment shall be prospectively applied to busincss gombinations for
which the acquisition date is on or aller July 1, 2014,

» PTRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
Total of the Repurtable Segments ' Assers to the Enlity’s Assets. 'The amendments require
entitics 1o disclose the judgment made by management in aggregating two or more operating
segments. This disclosure should include a brief description of the operating segments that
have been aggregated in this way and the economic indicators that have been assessed in
determining that the aggregated operating segments share similar cconomic characteristics.
The amendments also clarify that an entity shall provide reconciliations of the total of the
reportable segments” assets to the catity’s assets if such amounts are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision maker. These amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2014 and arc applied retrospectively.

» PFRS 13, Fair Value Measuremeni - Short-term Receivables and Payables. The amendment
clarifies that short-term receivables and payvables with no stated interest rates ¢an he held at
invoice amounts when the etfect of discounting is immaterial. This amendment is effective
for apnual pericds beginning on or after July t, 2014.

= PAS 16, Property, Plunt and Eguipment - Revaluation Methed - Proportionate Restatement of
Accumulared Depreciation. The amendment clarifies that, upon revaluation of an item of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the asset shall be adjusted 1o thy
revalued amount, and the asset shall he treated in one of the following ways:

a. The gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is adjusted 10 equal the difTcrence between the gross carrying amount and the
carrving amount of the asset afler taking into sccount any accumulated impairment losses.

b. The accumnnlated depreciation is eliminated agains the gross carrying emount of the asset.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2014, The
amendment shall apply 1o all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period.
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PAS 24, Relared Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel. The amendments clarify
that an entity is a reluted party of the reporting entity if the said entity, or any member of a
group for which it is a part of, provides key management personne] services 10 the reporting
entity or W the parent company of the reporting entity. The amendments also clarify that a
reporting entity that obtains management personnel services from another entity (also referred
l0 a5 management entity) is not required to disclose the compensation paid or payable by the
management entity to its employees or directors. The reporting entity is required lo disclose
the amounts incurred tor the key management personnel services provided by a suparate
management entity. T'he amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2014 and are applied retrospectively.

PAS 38, Inrangible Assets - Revaluation Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated
Amortization, The amendments clarify that, upon revaluation of an intangible asset, the
carTying amount of the asset shall be adjusted to the revalued amount, and the asset shall be
treated in one of the following ways:

a. The pross carrying amount is adjusled in & manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrving amount of the asset. The accumulated amortization at the date of
revaluation is adjusted v zyual the difference between the gross carrying amount and the
carrying amount of the asset after taking into account any accumulated impairment Josses.

b. The accumulated amortization is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.

The amendments also clarify that the amount of the adjustment of the accumulated
amortization should form pani of the increase or decrease in the carrying amount accounted for
in accordance with the standard.

The amendments are effective for annual periods begimning on or after July 1, 2014, The
amendments shall apply 10 all revaluations recognized in annual periods beginning on or after
the date of initial application of this amendment and in the immediately preceding annual
period.

Annual Improvements 1o PFRS (2011-2013 cyele)

The Annual Improvements to PFRS (2011-2013 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to the following standards:

PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Siandards - Meaning of
Effective PFRSs. The amendment clarifies that an entity may choosc to apply either a current
standard or a new standard that is not yet mandatory, but that permits early application,
provided either standard is applied consistently throughout the periods presented in the
entity’s first PFRS financial statements, The amendment is effective for annual periods
heginning on or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.

PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements, The amendment
clarifies that PFRS 3 docs not apply to the accounting for the formation of a joint arrangement
in the financial starements of the joint arrangement itself. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning un or after July 1, 2014 and is applied prospectively.

PERS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception. The amendment clarifies that the
portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied to financial assets, financial liabilities and other
coniracts. The amendment is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after July 1, 2014
and is applicd prospectively.
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e PAS 40, Prvesiment Property. The amendment clarifies the interrelationship between PFRS 3
and PAS 40 when classifying property as investment property or owner-oceupied property.
The amendment stated that judgment is needed when determining whether the acquisition of
investment property is the acquisition of an asset or a group of assets or a business
combination within the scope of PFRS 3. This judgment is based on the guidance of PFRS 3,
This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or afler July 1. 2014 and is
applicd prospectively.

6. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash in bank
Cash in bank eams interest al the prevailing bank deposit rates.

Financial Assets

Dare of Recognition of Financial Assers. The Company recognizes financial assets in the
staternent of financial position when it becomes u party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulatian or convention in the markelplace are recognized on settlement
date, i.¢., the date that an asset is delivered to or by the Company.

Initial Recognition of Financial Assers. Financial assols are recognized initially at fair value plus,
in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), directly attributable
transaction vosts,

Categories of Financial Assers. Financial assets are classified as [inanuial assets at FVPL, ioans
and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS {inancial assets or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Company determings
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition and where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates such classification every financial reporting date.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has no lnancial assets at FVPL, HTM
investments and derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

s Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. These are not entered into with the intention ¢f
immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as financiaj assets at FVPL or AFS
finang¢ial assets.

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, this category includes the Company*s cash in bank,
receivables and others, except for input VAT and nonmwade receivables (sce Note 17).

»  AFS Financial Assets

ATS financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-salc
or do not qualify to be classified as loans and receivables, financial assets at FVPL or HTM
investments. The Company designates financial instruments as AFS if they are purchased and
held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.
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As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, this cutepory includes the Company's investments in
shares of stock shown under “Available-for-sale financial assets” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Notc 9).

Subsequent Measurement. ‘The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

& loans and Recejvables

After initial measurements, loans and receivables arc carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method less any atlowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognized
in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the loans and
receivables are derccopnized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. Loans
and receivables are included in current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the
reporting date. (Otherwise, these are classitied as nencurrent assets.

*  AFS Financial Assels

After initial measurement, AFS financia! assets are measured at fair value with unrealized
gains or losses recognized as 4 scparate component of other comprchensive income in the
consolidated statement of camprehensive income and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity until the investment is derecognized or determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previeusly recorded in cquity is recognized in profit or Joss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

AFS financial assets in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market, or derivatives linked 1o such equity instruments are measured at cost because its fair
value cannot be reliably measured.

For a financial asset reclassificd out of the AFS financial assets category, any previous gain or
loss on that assel that has been recognized in equity is amortized to profit or loss in the
consulidated statement of comprehensive income over the remaining life of the invesiment
using the effective interest method. Any ditference berween the new amortized cost and the
cxpected cash flows is also amortized over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest method. If the asset is subsequentiy determined 1o be impaired then the amount
recorded in consolidated statement of changes in equity is reclassified to the profit or loss in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Where the Company holds more than one investment in the same security, these are deamed to
be disposed of on a moving average basis. Interest eamed on holding AFS financial assets are
reported as interest income using the effective interest rate. Dividends eamed on holding AFS
financial assets are recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the right to receive payment has been established. The losses arising from
impairnent of such financial assets are recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. These financial assets are classified as noncurrent assets
unless the intention is 1o dispose such assets within 12 manths from the reporting date.

Financial Liabilitics

Initial Recognition of Finuncial Liabilities. Financiai liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value of the consideration received which is determined by reference to the fransaction price or
other markes prices, and in the case of ather financial liabilities, inclusive of any directly
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attributuble transaction costs. If such market prices are not reliably determinable, the fair value of
the consideration is estimated as the sum of all future cash payments or receipts, discounted using
the prevailing market rates of interest for similar instruments with similar maturitics.

Categories of Financial Liabilities. Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at
FVPL or other financial liabilities which are measured at amortized cost or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedye, as appropriate. The Company determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial recopnition and where aliowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such classification every financial reporting date.

As #t December 31, 2013 and 2812, the Company has no financial liabilities at FVPL and
derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

Other financial liabilities are not held for trading nor designated as at FVPL upon the inception of
the liability. This includes liabilitics arising from operations such as accrucd expenses and other
current liabilities, and due 1o Belle Corporation (ses Note 17).

Subsequent Measurement. After initial recognition, other financial liabifities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses ave recoghized in
profit or losg in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income when the fiabilities are
derecognized as well as through the amortization process. Other financial liabilities are included
in current liabilities if maturity is within 12 months from the reporting date or the Company does
not have an unconditional right to defer payment for at least 12 monhs from the reporting date.
Othenwise, these are classitied as noncurrent liabilities.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financinl liabilities are offset and the net amount i3 reported in the
consolidated statement of financial pusition if; and only if, there is a currently enforceable right to
ofTset the recognized amounts and there is intention Lo settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset
and semtle the liability simultaneously. This s not generally the case with masler netting
agreements, and the related asscls and Habilities are presented gress in the consolidated statement
of [inancial position.

Determination of Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy

of Financial Assets and Financial [iabilities —

The fair value for financial assets and financial liabilities traded in active markets at each reporting
date is based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for shert pasitions}, without any deducticn for transaction costs. When current bid
and asking prices are not available, the price of the mos! recent transaction provides evidence of
the curreni fuir value as long as there has not been a signiticant change in economic circumstances
since the time of the transaction.

Far financial assets and financial liabilities where there is no active market, except for investment
in unquoted squily securities, fair value is determined by using sppropriate valuation techaiques.
Such techniyues include using recent arm’s lengih market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument, which s substantially the same: discounted cash flow
analysis; and options pricing models. In the absence of a reliable basis for determining fair value,
investments in unquoted equity securities arc carried at cost, net of impairment.
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The Company uses the following hicrurchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities by valuation technique:
* Level 1: quoted {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics;

*  Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have significant effect on the recorded
fair value are observable, either directly or indirectly:

*  Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value
that are not based on observable market data.

Fair value measurement disclosures are presented in Note 17.

Amortized Cost of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amcrtized cost is computed using the efTective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. The calculation takes into account any premium or discount on acquisition and
includes transaction costs and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest ratc,

“Day 1" Difference

Where the transaction price in & non-sctive market is different from the fair value of ather
vbservable current marker wansactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique
whose variables inelude only data from observable market, the Company rccognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1™ difference) in profit or loss in the
consolidatcd statement of comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other
type of assel. In cases where use s made of data which is not observable, the difference between
the transaction price and model value is anly recognized in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is
derecognized. [or each transaction, the Company delermines the appropriate method of
recognizing the “Day [~ difference amount.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses al each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that 2
financial asset or a group of financial assels is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
asscis is deemed to be impaired if, and only if] there is vbjective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has oceurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
“loss event™) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial asscts that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairinent may
include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing stgnificant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where obscrvable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrcase in the estimated future cash flows such as changes in arrears or ceonomic
conditions thar correlate with defaults,

Assets Carried al Amuriized Cost. For assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets thart are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is derermined that no objective evidence ol impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset. whether significant or not, the asger is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristies and that group of financial assets is
collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment Joss is, or continugs, to be recognized are not included in a collective
assessment of impalrment.
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I there is objective evidence that an impaiiment loss has been incurred, the amount af the loss is
measurcd as the difference berween the asset’s carrying wmount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate, The carrying
amount of the financial asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognized in profit or loss in the consolidaled statement of comprehensive income.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount based on the effective
interest rate of the asset.

The Company provides an allowance for loans and receivables which they deemed to be
uncolleetible despite the Company's continuous effort to collect such balunces from the respective
clients. The Company considers those past due receivables as still collectible if they become past
due only because of a defay on the fullillment of cerain conditions as agreed in the contract and
not due 1o incapability of the customers to {ulfill their cbligation.

However, for those receivables associated to pre-terminated contracts, the Company directly
writes them oft from the account since there is no realistic prospect of future recovery,

If, in a subsequent period, the amaunt of the iinpairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event vecurring alter the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recopnized in the consolidared statement of comprehensive income, 16 the extent that the carrving
value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

AFS Financial dssets. For AFS equity investments, the Company assesscs at ¢ach reporting date
whether there is objective evidence that an invesiment or a group of investments is impaired.

In the case of equity investmemts classified as ATS, objective evidence would include a significant
ar prolonged decling in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ““Significant™ is 1o be
evaluated ugninst the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair
valug, legs any impairment [oss or that investment previously recognized in the consalidated
statement of comprehensive income) s removed from other comprehansive income and
recognized in the consolidaled staternent of comprehensive income as pait of profit or loss.
[mpairment losses on equity investiments are not reversed through profit or Joss in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Increases in their fair value afler impairment are recognized
directly in other comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Assets Carried ar Cost. If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss un an unquoted
equity instrument that is net carried at fair value because its [zir value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must he setiled by delivery of such an
ungquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrving amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Derecornition of Fipancial Assets and 'in

Financial Asyets. A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is derccognized when:

* the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired; or
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» the Company retains the right to reecive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third parry under a “pass-through”
arrangement; vr

*  the Company has wansferved its right to receive cash lows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, hut has transferred control of the
asset.

Where the Company has transferred its right lo receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a “pass-through” arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantiatly all the
risks and rewards ot the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recopnized to the
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset, Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guaranlee over the transferred asset is measured ar the lower of the criginal carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay.

Financial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
15 discharged, cancelled or has ¢xpired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability arc substantially modified, such an exchange or
moditication is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment [r :
Investment property, which consists of land, is camied at cost less any impairment in value.

Investment property is derecognized when either it has been disposed of or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from ity
disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment property arc
recognized in profit or loss in the consolidaled statement of comprehensive income in the year of
retirement or dispasal.

Transfers are made 10 investment oroperty when. and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by ending of owner-occupation or commencement of an operating lease 10 another
party. Transfers are made from investment property when, and only when, there is a change in
use, evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a
view 10 sell.

For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property or inventories, the cost of
property for subscquent accounting is its carrying value at the date of change in use. If the
property occupied by the Company as an owner-occupicd property becomes an investment
property, the Company accaunts for such property in sceordance with the policy for property.
plant and equipment up 1o the date of change in use,

Impairment of Nonfinancial Assers ‘
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is en indication that the investment

property may be impaired. 1f any such indication cxists or when annual impairment testing for an
assel is required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amaount, An syset’s
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recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s cash-generating unit’s fair value less cost 10 sell or
its valug in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not trenerate ¢ash
inflows that are largely independent of those Irom other assets or groups of ussets. When the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is wrillen down to its recoverable amount. In determinin g fair value less cost to sell, an
appropriale valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples
and other available fair value indicators. In assessing value in use, the estimated [uture cash flows
are discounted to their present value using u pretax discount rate that reflects cursent market
assessients of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Any impairment logs is
recognized in profit or Joss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the expense
calegary consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made ai ¢ach reporting date as ro whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment [osses may na longer cxist or may have decreased. 1f such indication
vxists, the Company makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed anly if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
assel’s recoverable amount since the last iimpairment loss was recognized. 1 that is the case, the
cerrying amount of the asset is increased to i3 recoverable amount. Thart increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been deternined had no impainment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years, Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income either 23 part of profit or loss for the year or as part of other
comprehensive ingome in the case of asset carried at revalued amount.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issucd. Incremental costs incurred directly
attribulable Lo the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of
1ax.

Proceeds and/or fair valuc of consideration received in excess of par vatue are recognized as
additional paid-in capiral.

Deficit represents accumulated net losses,

Subscription receivable represents the unpaid portion of subseription of capital shares by the
investors.

The Parent Company shares held by & subsidiary are accounted for as equity instruments which
are reacquired and ere recognized at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss s recognized
in the consolidated siatement of camprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of'the Company’s own equity instruments. Any ditference between the carrving amount and the
congideration is recognized in other reserves.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of the revenue can be relisbly measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fuir value of the consideration received or
receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or

duty.
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The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue: is recognized:

Inierest Income. Inlerest income is recognized as the interest accrues taking into account the
effective vield on the gsset,

Gain on Liquidating Dividend. Revenuc is recognized when the right 10 receive the payment is
established.

cpense Recognition

Expenses are recognized when these are incurred.

Forejgn Cumency Transactions and Translation

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded in Philippine peso by 2pplying to the
foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the Philippine peso and the foreign currency
at the date of transaction. Manulary assets and monetary liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are restated using the closing ¢xchange rate at the reporting date. All differences are
taken to net loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income with the exception of
differences on foreign currency cxchange borrowings that provide a hedge against a nel
investment in a foreign entity. These are recorded as part of other comprehensive income and
taken to equity until the disposal of the net investment, at which time they are recognized in net
loss in the consolidated stavement of comprehensive income. Tax charges and credits attributable
to exchange rate differences on those borrowings are also dealt with in equity. Non-monetary
items measured ar fair value in a foreign currency are wanslated using the cxchangg rate at the date
when the fair value was determined. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
the acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of a forcign operation and translated at the
clasing exchange rale,

The “Share in cumulative translation adjustments of an associate™ account also includes the
Company’s share in translation adjusiments, under the current rate method, on the financial
statements of LIR-HK, before the Company discontinued using the equity method of accounting
for its investments in LIR-HK (see Notes 2 and 9).

Income Taxes

Current Tax. Current income tax assets and current income tax liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authority.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are thuse that are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting dale.

Deferred Tax. Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deterred tax asseis are recognized for all deductible emporary differences and carryforward
benefit of unused net operating lass carmyover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible vemporary differences end
caryferward benetits ot unused NOLCQ cun be utilized, except:

= where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible lemporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
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and, at the time of the transaction, affects neilher the 2ccounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

* inrespact of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interests in joint venturcs, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary ditferences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
laxuble profit witl be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable prefit will be available w allow all or
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each reporting date and are recognized 1o the extent that it has become probable that future taxabie
profit will allow the deferred tax essets 10 be recovered.

Deferred tax asscls are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the yvear when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if 2 legally enforceable right cxists to offset current
tax assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same tax authority,

Value-Added Tax (VAT). Revenues, expenses, assets and Liabilities are recognized net of the
amount of VAT except:

* where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the ax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense item as applicable; and

* receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of rax ingluded.

The carrying value of Input VAT is included under “Receivables and others™ account in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Loss per Share
Loss per share is computed by dividing net loss by the weighted aversge number of issued and
outstanding common shares during the year after deducting treasury shares, il any.

Business Segments
The Company's operating businesses are organized and managed separately according 1o the

nature of the products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit that offers different producis.

Segment Assets and Liabilities. Segment assets include all operating asscis used by a segment und
consist principally of operating cash, receivables, real estate for salc, club shares, investment
propertics under construction and property and cquipment, net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of accounts
payable and other liabilities. Segment assets and liabilities do not include deferred income taxes.
investments and advances, and borrowings.
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Inter-segment Transactions. Segment revenue, segment expenses and segiment performance
include transfers among business segments. The trensfurs, if any, are accounted for at competitive
market prices charged t unaffiliated customers for similar products. Such transfers are eliminated
upon consulidation.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event; it is probable that an vutllow of resources embadying ceonomic benefits will
bu required to sertle the obligation; and. a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation. When the Company expects some or all of & provision v be reimbursed, for example
under an insurance contract, the réimbursement i5 recognized as a separate assct but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The uxpense relating to any provision is presented as part of
profit or loss in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, net of any reimbursement.
Ifthe eftect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pretax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the Jiability. Where discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passape of time is recognized as interest expense.

Conlingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. They are
disclosed in the noles 1o consolidated financial statements unless the pussibility of an outflow of
resources embadying economic benefits is remote, Contingent assets are not recognized in the
consolidated financial starements but arc disclosed in the notes to consclidated financial
statements when an inflow of economic benetits is prabable,

Events after the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position at
the reporting period (adjusting events), if any, are reflected in the consolidated financial
stalemnents, Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
consolidated financial statements when material.

Significant Accounting Judgmenté. Estimates and Assumptions

The preparatiun of the Company’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make
Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilitics, and the disclosure of contingent liabilitias, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustmen in the future to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected.

Judgments and estimates ar: continually evaluated and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are to believe to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Judemants

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has madc judgment, apant from
these involving estimatinng, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements.

Determination of Functional Currency. Based on the economic substance of the underlying
circumstances relevant to the Company, the Company has determined its functional currency to be
Philippine peso. It is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates and the currency that mainly influences the revenues and expenses.
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Determination of Fair Value of Financial Assets Not Quoted in an Aciive Market. The Company
classifies financial assets by evaluating, among others, whether the asset is quoted or not inan
active markel. Included in the evaluation on whether a financiaf asset is quoted in an acrive
market is the determination on whether quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and
whether those prices represent actual and regularly accruing market transaction in an arm’s-length
basis.

The fair values of the Company’s investments in unquoted shares cannot be reasonably
determined as there is ne available reference to its market. There were no recent transactions
involving these shares, therefore these investments are carried at cost.

The carrying value ol investments in unquoted shares amounted to £1,000.0 million as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 (see Note 9).

Determination of Fair Value of Financial Assers and Financial Liakilities, PFRS requires certain
financial assets and liabilities to be carried and disclosed at fair value, which requires extensive
use of accounting cstimates and judgments, While significant components of fair value
measurement were determined using verifiable objective evidence (i.e., foreign exchange rates,
interest rates, volatility rates), the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Company
utilized a different valuation methodology. Any changes in the assumprions could affect the fair
value of these financial assets and liabilities.

The fair value of financial assets amounted 1o B1,599.4 million and $1,632.1 million as a1
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The fair value of financial liabilities amounted
to £53.2 million and £53.3 millian as at Degember 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 17).

Evaluation of Legal Contingencies. The Company recorgnizes provision for possible claims when
it 15 determined that an unfavorable outcome is probable and the amount of the ¢laim can be
reasonably estimated. The determination of reserves required, if any, is based on analysis of such
individual issue, often with the assistance of outside legal counsel. As at March 1], 2014, the
Company is involved with the case filed by Metroplex before the SC (see¢ Note 19). In the opinion
of management and its legal counsel, the eventual liability, if any, that may result from the
outcome of this case will not materially affect the Company’s financial position and financial
performance.

Estimates and Assumpricns

The keyv estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have e significant risk of causing a material adjustinent 1o the
carrving amounts of assets and lizbilities within the next financial year are discussed below.,

Deiermination of Impairment of Receivables. The Company maintains allowance tor doubtful
accounts at a level considered adequate 1o provide for potential uncollectible receivables. The
level of this allowance is evaluated by the management an the basis of factors that affeet the
collectability of the accounts. These factors include, but not limited 1o, the length of relationship
with the customers, the customer’s payment behavior and known marker factors.

The Company reviews the allowance on a continuous basis. Accounts that are specifically
identificd 10 be potentially uncollectible are provided with adequate allowance through charges w
income in the form of provision for doubtful accounts. Factars eonsidered in individual
#ssessment are payment history, past due status and term. A provision is also established as a
certain percentage of reccivables not provided with specific reserves. This percentage is based on
a sollestive assessment of historical collection, changes in sounterparty payment terms and other
factors that may affect the Company’s ability to collect payments.
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The amount and timing of recorded provision for doubrful accounts for any period would differ if
the Company made different judgments or utilized differcnt estimates. An increase in the
Company's allowance for doubrful accounts would increase the recorded general and
administrative expenses and decrease its current assets.

No provision for donbtful accounts on receivables was recognized in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
Allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to P89.0 million as at December 3, 2013 and 2012,
The aggregate carrving values of receivables amounted to #26.2 million and 230.0 million as at
Decernber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (see Note 8).

Evaluation of Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. The Company determines that AFS financial
assels are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below
its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The Company determines that a
decline in fair value of greater than 20% of cost is considered to be a significant decline and a
decline for a period of more than 12 months is considered to be a prolonged decline. This
determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the
Company cvaluates, among other factors, the norinal volatility in share price for quoted cquitics.
In addition, AFS financial assets are considered impaired when management believes that future
cash flows generated front the invesiment is expected to decline significantly. The Company’s
management makes significant cslimates and assumptions on the future cash flows expected and
the appropriate discount rate to determine if impairment exists. Impairment may also be
appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry
and sector performance.

Provision for impairment loss on AFS financial assets amounted to nil, #1,585.1 million and
20.2 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively, The aggregate carrying values of AFS
financial assets amounted to 81,380.8 million and R1,601.6 million as at December 31, 2013 and
212, respectively (see Note 9), Allowance for impairment amounted to ¥2,160.0 million as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 (see Note 9).

Determination of Impairment of Nonfinancial Assets. The Company assesses whether there are
any indicators of impairment for all nonfinancial assets at each reporling date. Investment
property is tested for impairment when there are indicators that the earrying amount may not be
recoverable. Determining the value of these nonfinancial assets, which requires the determination
of future cash flows expected 1o be generated from the continued use and ultimate disposition of
such assets, requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that can materially affect
the consolidated financial statements. Future events could cause the Company to conclude that
such nonfinancial assets are impaired. Any resulting impairment loss could have a material
adverse impact on the Company's financial position and performance.

No provision for impairment loss on investment properties and other asset was recognized in
2013, 2012 and 2011. The aggregare carrying value of investment properties and other asset
amounted to 8459.7 millicn and B394.2 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively
(see Notes 10 and 15).

Realizability of Input VAT, The carrying amount of input VAT ig reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced ta the extent that such input VAT will not be realized as there will be no available
output VAT to be applied.

The carrying value of input VAT is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The

allowance, if any, is established by charges 10 income in the form of provision for probable lass on
input VAT. The amount and timing of recorded expenses for any period would therefore differ
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based on the judgment or estimates made. An increase in the allowance for probable loss on input
VAT would increase the Company’s recorded expenscs and decrease current assets,

Input VAT, included under “Receivables and others™, was provided with allowance for probable
losses amounting to #0.3 million, #0).1 million and 20.2 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively (see Notes 8 and 13). Allowance for probable loss on input VAT amounted 1o

R2.| mitlion and B1.8 million as at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively,

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assats. Deferred tax asscts are recognized for all deductible
temporery differences and unused NOLCO to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. Significant management
Jjudgment is required to determing the amount of deferred tax osscts that can be recognized based
upon the likely timing and level of future tavable profits together with future tax planning
strategies,

Unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to BS10.1 million and B507.8 millicn as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively (sce Note 14).

Recejvables and Others

Receivables
This account consists of

2013 2012
Loan assets (see Note 2) ¥81,627,975 B81,627,975
Advances to related parties (see Note 1) 17,692,279 29,700,412
Nontrade and others 15,920,525 7,490,379
115,240,779 118,818,766

Less allowance for doubtful accounts and probablc
loss 89,038,980 88,782,043
B26,201,799 P30,036,723

Loan assets pertain to the Parent Company’s acquisition of [.IR-
the Philippines for a total consideration of #41.6 million. The }
Sinophil shares held by Metroplex, which is the subject of the
Company and Melroplex rescinding the

was fully provided with allowence in pri

The terins and conditions of advances 1o related parties are disclosed in Note 15.

Others

Others mainly pertain to In
31, 20113 and 2012, respuct
B1.8 millien a5 at December 31,

Movement of allowance for doubtfill accounts znd probable loss is as follows:

HK's loan from Union Bank of
oan is secured by 1,000,000,000

MOA entered into by the Parent

Swap Agreement as discussed in Note 2. The loan asset

put VAT amounting to 9.9 million and ®1.8 million as at December
with allowance for probable loss amounting to 2.1 million and
2013 and 2012, respectively,

2013 2012
Balance at beginning of year F88,782,043 P8R8,640,48)
Provision (see Note |5) 256,937 141.362
Balance atend of year __P89,038,980 P88,782,043
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9. AFS Financial Assets

AFS financial assets consist of the following:

2013 2012
Quoted shares:

Belle - common shares {s¢e Note 17) B490,939,700 B484,940,437
Golf club shares (see Note 15) 89,800,000 116,600,000
Others 70,0110 70014
580,809,700 601,610,437

Unquoted shares:
Belle - preferrad shares (see Note 15) 1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000
(Others 11,100 11,100
1,6000,611,100  1,000,011,100
. P1,580,820,800 B1,601,621,537

Movements of this account are as follows:

2013 2012
Cost:
Balance at beginning of year B3.366,556,.838 R3,710,619470
Additinns during the year - 42,851,879
Liguidation of investment in Belle Bay City — (386,214,511)
Balance at end of vear 3,366,5560,838 3,366,556,838
Cumulative unrealized mark-to-market gain (loss)
on AFS financial assets:
Balance at beginning of year 395,071,450 300,238,030
Transfer of unrealized loss to impairment loss - 83,560,000
Net increasc (decrease) during the year (20,800,737 11,273,460
Subtotal {20,800,737) 94,833,460
Balance at end of year 374,270,733 395,071,190
Aceumulated impairment loss:
Balance at beginning ol vear (2,160,006,791) (888,604,844)
Impairment loss during the year (see Note 2) - (1,585,088,316)
Liquidation of investment in Belle Bay City - 313,686.369
Ralance at end of year 2,160,006,721) (2,160,006,791)

_R1580820800 R1,601,621.537

Thete are no quoted market prices for the unlisted shares of stock and there are no other reliable
sources of their fair values, therefore, these are carried at cost, net of any impairment loss.

Belle

The investment in common shares of Belle is carried at market value.

The Company’s investment in preferred shares is entitled o 9.75% cumulative dividend per
annum. This investment and its accumulated unpaid dividend are the subjects of a settlement
agreement entered intu belwoen Sinophil and Belle on August 28, 2009 {ses Note 15},

In 2012, the Company received Belle shares as settlement for the Company’s advances te Belle

amounting to B42.8 million,
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Golf Club Shares

in aceordance with the Settlement Agreement executed hetween Sinophil and Belle in 1997,
Sinophil received 220 shares Tagaytay Midland Golf Club, Inc, (“TMGCI”) {see Note !3). In
2012, Sinophil recognized provision for impairment on the elub shares smounting to B83.6 million
in the conselidated statement of comprehensive ingome.

Belle Bay City

Belle Bay City’s major development preject is a [ 9-huclare mixed-use real estate development
along Roxas Boulevard, on a reclaimed land along Manila Bay. On June 27, 2003, the BOD of
Belle Bay City approved the resolution to amend its articles of incorporation to shorten the
corporate term from 30 years to end on January 31, 2004, The stockholders of Belle Bay City
ratitied the resolution on July 10, 2003. On Janvary 27, 2005, the SEC approved the application
for dissolution of Belle Buy City.

In November 2012, the Company recetved land with an arca of 4,348 square meters from Belle
Bay City as liquidating dividend. The receipt of the land from Belle Bay City resulted in the
vancellation of the Company’s net investments in Belle Bay City amounting to #73.2 million as
well as its advances amounting to B2.2 million. As a result of the liquidation of its investments in
and advanees 10 Belle Bay Citly, the Company received a land amounting to P108.7 million,
presented under “Investment praperties™ aceount in the consolidated statement of financial
position (see Note 10} and recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income a
#ain on liquidaring dividend amounting to £33.3 million. The liquidating dividend received from
Belle Bay City is valued based on determinable fair value at the datc of distribution.

Mewo Manila Turf Club (MMTC)

MMTC (initially 70% and 30%-cwned entity of Belle and Sinophil, respectively; 8.75% and
3.75% owned, respectively as at December 31, 2013 and 2012} is involved in the establishment,
operation and maintenance of stadium. arenas, tracks, turf and other facilities for the conduct of
any and all kinds of sports and games. On July 25, 1994, MMTC was granted a 25-year franchise
to construct, operate and maintain a racetrack for horse racing in the ¢ity of Caloocan. An
amendment to the franchise 10 operate in the province of Batangas, Cavite, Laguns and Rizal was
approved by the Congress of the Phitippines on June 9, 1997,

In 2002, because of the continuing losses incurred by MMTC and there being no construction
activity in the land where the racetrack of MMTC was 1o be built, the Company provided an
impairment in value of its investment in MMTC amounting to B685.1 million.

On October 5, 2006, MMTC, Belle and the Company entered into an agreement with Equitrak
Management Corporation (Equitrak), an unrelated party, for the development and operation of
MMTC's horse racing franchise. Unidler the agreement, Equitrak is pranted the concession to:

a. seccure the site for the construction of the harse racing complex;
b, solicit investors for the construction funds necessary for all construction costs; and
c. participate in the management of MMTC in order to operate the horse racing franchise.

Under the agreement, MMTC will spin-off all of its real estate properties and return the same pro-
rata to the Company and Belle. Land received from the spin-off amounting to 8285.5 million was
recorded us pant of “Investment Properties™ in the consolidated statements of financial position
{see Note 10).
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Upon fulfilliment by Lquitrak of its obligations, MMTC shall issue to Gquitrak shares equivalent to
20% of its outstanding capital stock. Iiowever, the business of development and operations of the
horse racing complex did not materialize.

As a result of the foregoing, thers are uncertaintics that may affect the recoverability of the
remaining carrying value of the Company’s investment in MMTC. Accerdingly, in 2007, the
Company provided additional impairment in value amounting to B33.8 million, which effectively
2eroed out the carrving value of the Company’s investment in MMTC.

Belle and Sinophil sold their ownership in MMTC's capital stock totaling 1o 42.5% and 45%, in
2009 and 2008, respectively, 1o a group of privale investors, thereby reducing Belle and Sinophil's
ownership as at December 31, 2009 to 8.75% and 3.72%, respectively.

As a result of the Company’s loss of significant influence over MMTC, the invesument was
reclassified and preseated in the consolidated statements of financial position as AFS financial
assets effective December 31, 2005

10.

Investment Properties

This account consists of the land received from the spin-off of the real estate properties of MMTC,
1 former associate, and the land received from Delle Bay Cily as liquidating dividend amounting
to P285.5 million and 108.7 million, respectively (see Note 9). The Company adupted the cost
model and continues 1o camy its investment property in the consclidated statements of financial
position et ¢cost less any impairment iosses.

The aggregale fair value of the investmyni property amounted to 646.3 million as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The fair value was arrived at through the use of the
“Market Dala Approach” as determined by independent professionally gualified appraisers. The
fair value represents the amount at which {nvestment property could be exchanged between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's-length transaction at the date of valuation.

The Company belicves that there were no conditions present after valuation daw that would
significantly reduce the fair value of the investment properties from prev iously determined fair
values.

Determination of the fair values of investment properties are categorized under Level 2 fair value
measurement.

11.

Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liubilities

This account consists of:

2013 2012
Accrued expenscs 253,143,407 R53.271,709
Statutory liabilities 72,223 44,284
Other payables 105,873 51,077

R53,321.503 £53,367,070

Accrued expenses represent mainly acerual for professional fees and other general and
administrative expenses. The Compuny's accrued expenses and other current liabilities are
payable on demand.
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12. Equity

Preferred Stock

As at December 31, 2013 and 2012, Sinovhil has not issued any preferred stock out of the
authorized 6.000,000,000 shares with par value of #1. Under the provision of the Parent
Company’s articles of incorporation, the rights and features of the preferred stocks shall be
determined through a resolution ot the BOD prior to issuance.

Common Stock

Number of Shares

2013 2012 2011

Authorized - P1 par value 10,130,000,000 10.130,000,000  10,130,000,000
Issuad:

Balance at beginning of year 3,096,890.735 3,096,440,785 3,096,340.783

Issuance 100,000 450,000 100,000

Balance at ¢nd ot vear 3,006,990,785  3,096,890,785 3.006,440,785

Subscribed 4,830,319215  4.830,419,215  4,830,869.215

7,927,310.000  7,927.310,000 7,927,310,000

In 1993, 25,000,000 primary shares of the Company’s capital stock were offered and sold 1o the
public at par value. On August 28, 1993, the Company's shares of stock were formally bisted in
the small board of the PSE.

On September 30, 1996, the SEC approved the increase in the Company's authorized capiial siock
from 2],000.0 millien, divided inte 100,000.000,000 shares a1 R0.0) par value, to
B2.000.0 mitlion, divided into 200.900.000,000 shares with the same par value.

On March 10, 1997, the stockhelders approved the increase in the Company’s nuthorized capital
stock from 22,000.0 million, divided inte 200,000,000,000 shares at B0.01 par value a share,

to ®20,000.0 mitlion, divided into 14,000,000,000 commun shares and 6,000,000,600 preferred
sharcs both with par value of B!,

On February | 8, 2002, the stockholders approved the cancellanion of 3,870,000,000 shares held by
cne of the Parent Company’s shareholders, of these shares a total of 2,870,000,00¢ shares have
been cancelled and delisted in 2006 and 2008 (see Note 2).

On March 28, 2006, the SEC zpproved the reduction of the Cempany's authorized capital stack by
i,870,000,000 shares 1o 18,130,000,000 shares divided into 12,130,000,000 common shares and
6,000,000,000 preferred shares (see Noie 2}

On June 34, 2008, the SEC furimatly approved the Company's appiication for further reduction
and cancellation of authorized capital stock by 1,000,000.000 shares resulting in total authorized
capital stock of 17,130,000,000 shares divided into 11,130,000,000 commun shares and
§,000,000,000 preferred sharcs (see Note 2).

On July 9, 2009. the SEC approved the Company’s application for further reduction of authorized
capital stock by 1,000,000,000 shares resulting in tolal authorized capital stock of 16,130,000.000
shares, divided into 10,130,000,000 comman shares and 6,000,000,000 preferred shares

(see Note 2).
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Tn 2013, the Company’s stockhalders approved the amendments to its Articles of Incorporzation to
reduce the par value of the Company’s commen and preferred shares from £1.00 per share to
P0.25 per share. Upon approval by the SEC of the Company’s quasi-reorganization, the additional
paid in capital arising from the reduction in par value will be subsequently applied against the
Company's accumulated delicit. As at March 11, 2014, the Company is stitl in the process ol
filing appropriate applications with the SEC for quasi-reorganization,

Subseribed Shares

The subscription price of 4,834,319,213 shares amounted to ¥6,637.7 million of which

B4 962.6 miliion and 84,962.7 million is still uncollected as at December 31, 2013 and 202,
respectively. Subscription receivable becomes due and demandable upon approval of a capital
call by the Parent Company’s BOD.

Parent Company Shares Held by a Subsidiary

FCRI halds 136,530,000 common shares of the Parent Company with a cost of P477.3 million as
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, These are presented as “‘Cost of Parent Company shares held by
2 subsidiary™ and are treated as a reduction in equity.

13. General 2nd Administrative Expenses
This account consists of:
2013 2012 2011
Taxes and licenses B3,061,835 #2.190,820 R643,685
Professional fecs 2,236,832 2,025,961 3,034,244
Saiaries and wages 1,335,472 1,341,485 1,438,462
Assouiation dues 773,043 - —
Ententainment, amusement and recreation 580,919 574,924 678,369
Insurance 389,855 498 837 201918
Provision for probable loss on input VAT
{see Now &) 256,937 141,362 2424477
Miscellancous 79,917 140,089 156,388
-+ #8,735,710 £6,913,078 B6.437,543
Miscellancous pertains to office supplies, messengeriel and postage services, bank charges and
olhers,
14, Income Taxes

The Company's provision for current income tax amounted (o 29.2 million in 2012 which includes
capital gains tex (CGT) paid by the Company under protest for the transfer of land from Belle Bay
City amounting 1o 6.5 miliion. The payment of CGFT was made for the sole purpose of
facilitating the prompt transfer of title from Belle Bay City to the Company. The Company
believes that the imposition of CGT is improper hecause the transfer was not made in the ardinary
course of business but by operation of law in view of the ongoing liquidation process of Belle Bay
City. The Company has no provision for current income tax in 2013 and 2011 since the Company
is in 2 tax loss position and the Company’s income items mainky consists of income already
subjected to final tax,
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The reconciliation of the benetit from income fax computed at statulory income tax rate on 1oss
before income lax 1o the benefit from income tax as shown in the consolidated stalements of

comprehensive income is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Tncome fax compuled at statulory tax raie (R2,620,400)  (P467.602.998) (R2,003.078)
Income tax effect of!
Change in unrecognized deferred tax
a85C1S 2,256,650 470,224 883 234,269
Nondeductible expenses 337,382 6,736,946 348,854
Expired NOLCO 26,681 18,206 1.420.140
Interest subject to final 1ax  (313) (348) {185
B- RO.376.085 P—

The components of the Company's temporary differences and carnforward benefits of NOLCO
for which no deferred tax assets were recognized are as follows:

2013 2012

Allowance for impairment of invesiments #1,587,088,316 PB1.587,088316
Allowance for doubtful accouns of recsivables

and others, excluding allowance for input

value-added tax (scc Note §) $6,977,098 86,977,098
Allowance for deferred oil exploration

and developmant costs 18,377,841 18,377,841
NOLCO 7,795,342 273,176

P1.700,238,597 P1,692,716,431

Deferred tax assets amounting to #8510.1 million and #507.8 million as a1 December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively, were not recognized since management believes that it has no sufficient
taxable income against which the deductible temporary differences and the carryforward benefits
of these assets can be utilized in the future.

In 2012, NOLCO that was claimed as deductions from normal taxable incomu by the Parent
Company are a5 follows:

Year Incurred Expiry Date Amount
2009 December 31, 2012 85,968,630
2010 December 31, 2013 6,312,245
2011 December 31, 2014 5,410,332

_B17,691,227

As at December 31, 2013, the Company has the following NOLCO that can be claimed as
deductions [fom normal taxable income:

Year Incurred Expirv Date Amount
2011 December 31, 2014 B104,365
2012 Decenber 31, 2015 79,873
2013 December 31, 2016 7,611,104

B7 795,342
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NOLCO amounting to £0.08 miltion and PG.01 million had expired in 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

15,

Related Purly Transactions

Related parties are enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, control, or are controlled by, or under commen control with the Company,
including holding companies, and subsidiaries. Associates and individuals owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Company (hat gives them significant influence
over the enterprise, key management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company
and close members of the family of these individuals and compenies associated with these
individuals also constitute related entitics. Transactions between related parties are accounted for
at arm’s-length prices or on terms similar to those offered 1o non-related entities in an
economically comparable market.

In considering each possible related entity relationship, attention is dirccted to the substance of the
relationship. and not merely the legal form.

Settlement Agreement with Belle

On Ocxober 7, 1997, Sinophil subscribed to 1,000,000,000 preferred shares from Belle at

B1.00 per share, with a coupon rate of 9.75% per annum (see Note 9). The accrued dividends on
the preferred shares from 1997 1o 1998 amounting to 892.3 million were paid in August 2009.
Sinophil is entitled to receive dividend out of the net profit of Belle when and as declared by
Beile’s BOD. No additiona! dividends have been declared on the preferred shares after 1998
because of the sbsence of retained earnings in Belle.

On August 28, 2009, a Settlement Agreement {Agreement) was executed between Belle and
Sinophil o settle the unpaid accrued dividends and to eventually cancel the preferred shares,
subject 1 the transfer by Bellv ta Sinophil: (1) 220 shares in TMGCl and (2) a 235,583 square
meters of developed Rancho Montana land located in Tanavan, Batangas, completion of which is
expected within five years from the date of the Agreement. The developed Rancho Montana land
together with the 220 TMCC] shares shall be transferred to Sinophil at an aggregate value of at
least #1,092.3 million.

Immediately after the execution of the Agreement, Belle transferred the 220 TMGCI shares and
execured a Deed of Assignment over the said TMGCI shares to Sinophil. Sinophil, on the other
hand, executed a Release, Waiver and Quitclaim (1) aceepting the payment of dividends in the
form of 220 shares in TMGCI; (2) renouncing its rights to all past, present and future dividends;
(3) agrecing to the revocation of the coupon rate originally provided for the preferred shares: and,
(4) agreeing to the cancellation of all its preferrud shares in Belle upon receipt of the developed
Rancho Montana land.

The TMGCI shares amounting to ®154.0 million (net of B44.0 million decline in fair value as at
December 11, 2000) was recorded as “AFS financial assets™ in 2009 (sce Note 9). The related
outstanding payable (after ofTsetting the outstanding reccivable of £92.3 million) as at
December 31, 2013 and 2012 amounting to #105.7 million is presented under “Due to Belle
Corporation” account in the consolidated statements of financial position.
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Amendment to Seitlement Agreement with Belle

On April 5, 2013, an Amendment to the Setticment Agreement was exceuted berween Belle and
Sinophit to modify the composition of its settlement offer for the Preferred Shaces. The parties
have agreed on the following amendments:

(1) replacement of the real estate compunent of the settiement agreement, In tieu of the delivery
of 220 saleable lots in Rancho Montana. Belle underakes 1o (1) 10 pay on or before
Auvgust 28, 2014, approximately P100.0 million of the Preferred (bligation by way of:

(i} delivery of develuped lats within the Tagaytay Highlands-Midlands Complex, with an
aggregale valuation of approximately P75.0 million inclusive of 1236 VAT and
registration costs.

(i) payment of all costs and expenses estimated at approximately P25.0 million for the
conversion and titling of Sinophil's properties located at or near Rancho Montana totaling
36 hectares: (b) delivery en or before August 28, 2019, such number of developed lots in
Ranche Montana having an aggregate value of approximately B794.0 million based on
agreed valuation of B8.000.00 per square meter, exclusive of VAT,

(2) moditication of penalty for delay in delivery of Rancho Montana lots.

In March 2015, Belle delivered developed lots with estimated value of B65.5 million recognized
as “Other Assel” with corresponding “Due 1o Belle Corporation™ in the 2013 consolidated
statermnent of financial position pending transfer of title of the developed lots to the parent
company.

Under the Seftlement A grecment, the cancellation of the preferred shares shall be effective only
upon completion of the transfer of the title of the developed properlies Lo Sinophil.

Onher Transactions with Relaied Pariies

In the ordinan course of business, the Company has transactions with related parties which
consist mainly of extension or availment of noninierest-bearing advances. The vutstanding
balances at vear-end are due and demandable. There have been no guarantees provided o
received for any related party receivables or payables.

The smounts included in these transactions are as follows:

Transgcuon Cussranding

Reiated Party Relasionskip Transasting ATROURL Ruolarics Tenns Condition
Beiis Stockhelder Advarses i 2013 [PE2 008,133y P16.925.395 Non-intersst  Unsevuced, no
ratanad pamy Beanng, due pad L:EpaITTNATE

demandable
012 [26,174,218) 28,933,525 Nomaintensit  Uinsecured, na
beanng. dupemd impairment

demnerduble
Pamial 2513 T3 A61,334 179.011 570 Non-interest Uinescured

rederviption of baerng, due jnd

prefemed sheres dermntlatile
012 - YOS .EED, 145 Muzm-inierast inge zared

benring, foe And

Jermandzhle
Parallax Stockhuolder Advaacss 1o 1013 = 766,884 Non-ipteres;  Unescurzd, no
1elated prty beenng, due and impairment

demandable
a2 THA,8%4 766,854 Nosamsmieresl  Urseeured, na
beizimg. due nnd impairmen:

derrardabie
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Trassuction Cuistanding

Reinted Pamy Rehrionship Trarsachun Amodms Dalsnce Terms Condnsen
Brile Buy Uity Invaster Advances to 2013 - - Fuily seftled
retetad pamy
i B (21 958,053} - Non-interesl  Vnseoured, mo
bearing, dug Bnd impairment
demandadls
{ffesrs Key maragemem  Selariss and 013 R1.241,485 =
persgnnel wagsy 1012 #1,341,488 B

16.

Basic/Diluted Loss Per Common Share Computation

2013 2012 2011
Net loss (a) 28,734,667 P1,568,053,348 P6,676,928
Weighted average common shares (b) 2,770,780,000  7.770,780,000  7,770,780,000
Loss per common share (a/b) R0.00112 £0.20179 B0.00086

17,

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies and Capital Management

The Company's principai financial instruments comprise cash in bank, receivables and AFS
financial assets. 'The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Company's operations. The Company has other financial liabilities such as accrued expenses and
other current liabilities which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and
equity price risk. The Company i3 not exposed to any other type ot market risk, such as foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk, as the Company has no outstanding foreign currency-
denominated accounts and interest-bearing other financial liabilities us at December 31, 2013 and
2012,

The BOD reviews and approses the policies for managing credit, liquidity and equity price risks
and they are summarized below:

Credit Risk Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its counterparties
failed to discharge their contractual obligations. Credit risk arises from the Company’s financial
assets which are composed of cash in bank, receivables and others and AFS financial assets.

It is the Company’s policy that ali customers who wish ta wrade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. The Company's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the
counterparty, with & maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The
Company’s credit risk is concentrated on Belle, a stockholder, of which outstanding balance
covers gt least 96% and 56% of the Company’s total receivables as at December 31, 2013 and
2012, respectively.
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The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the Company’s financial assets,
without taking into account of any collateral and other credit enhancements:

Gross Maximum Exposure

Net Maximum Expasute

2013 2012 .23 2012

Cash in bark RO25,038 P789,884 P925,03% Pi89,884
Receivables aad others™ 17,715,534 29,723,667 17,713,534 29,723,657
AFS financial assets 1,580.820,800 | 601,621,537 1,580.520,800 1,601,621,537
P1,599,461,373 P1,632,135,088 21,589,461.373 P1,632,133.088

*This excludes prepayments and Input vat amouniing fo 2,346,243 and R313,056 uy at Devember 31, 243 and 2012,

respectively

The table below shows the aging znalysis of the Company’s financial assets.

013
Pust Due but nat Impaired
Neither Piest Over 1
Due nor Less than 31 Davs Youe up o
Impaired 30 dars 191 Year 3 Years  Over 3 Yeary lmpalred Total
Cash in bank 25,039 = - o [ R P215.039
Reteivables and othom:
Losn assets - - - 81,617,975 81,527,975
Advaress 10 related
parijas 17.692.279 - - - - - 17,692,279
Neplrade axd ¢thers® - = - 23,255 TAILDUS 7,434,260
AFS Soaaviel wsely 1.580.8240,804 - - - —  1.160,006.79]1 3.740,827.591
P1,599.435,i18 [ P- [ B23.255 F7.249,045,771 P3.54R,507.144
* Tk CAE PRI ain) npvi et stsaunnag £ A 98 165 e or Decembes 1. 201G =
2012
Pest Duc but 20t Impaired
Nexther Pist Crver
Drue nus 1exs than 32 Dags Yearupio
frrpenitisd }U_d_a'\'s 1) Yiar 3 Yeas  Over P Years Impeaired Totel
Cagly in, hank BT3S. 304 #- R [N Fim - [FECELE]
Recaivables and others:
Loas aszeis - - - - R1H27 975 81,627,975
Advances 10 relaed
paties 28,7042 - E - - - 29,7402
Nonatragde and othets® - - 3 23282 7154068 7,137,333
AFS fingncm ussels LOULB2E, 537 - - - 2160{06,791 3.761,638.328
B 632.111,833 * [ [ B23,255 B2.24%,THE.E4 P3RE0521.922
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The table below shows the credit quality of the Company”s {inancial asscts that are neither past
due nor impaired hased on historical experience with the corresponding third parties.

2013
iligh Grade Medium Grade Unrated _ Tatal
Cash in bank RO25.030 R R PO25,03%
Receivables and others - - = &
Advances to related parties 17.692,279 - - 17,692,279
ATS financial assets 1,490,939,700 80,800,000 $1,100 1.580,820,800
R1,509,557.018 FP89,800,000 R31,100 PI1,599,438,118
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Iligh Grade  Medium Grade Unrated Total

Cash in bank P739.884 P— B P789.884
Receivables and others -

Advances to relaled parties 29,700,412 - - 29,700,412

AFS financial assets 1,484,940,337 115,600,000 31,100  1,601,621,537

R1,515430,733  P116,600,000 Pg1,100 P1,632,111,833

High grade financial assets periain to those receivables from related parties or customers that
consistently pay on or before the maturity date while medium grade includes those financial assets
being collected on due dates with an effort of collection.

The Company assessed ils cash in bank as high grade since this is deposited with reputable banks.

Unquoted AFS financial assets in Belle preferred shares is considered as bigh grade. Quoted AFS
financial assets are assessed based on financial status of the counterparty and its current stock
price performance in the market. High grade AFS financial assets consistently show increasing
stock prices while medium grade AFS financial assets show decline in value of not more than
20%.

Liguidiry Risk. Liguidity risk arises from the possibility that the Company may encounter
difficultics in meeting obligations associated with itz uccrued expenses and other current
ligbilities.

The Company seeks to manage its liquidity profile to be able to finance its investments and pay its
outstanding liabilities. To cover its financing reguiretnents, the Company uses internally
generated funds,

Equity Price Risk. FEquity price risk is the risk that the fair value of quoted AFS financial assets
decreases as the result of changes in the value of individual stocks. The Company’s exposure (o
equity price risk relates primarily to the Company's quoted AFS financial assets.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in equity price,
with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s equity. The impact on the Company’s of
equity alrcady cxcludes the impact on transactions affecting the consolidated profit or loss bafore
income tax.

2013 2012
Increase Decrease Increase Deacraase
in Equity in Equity in Equity in Equity
Price Price Price Price
Percentape increase (decrease)
in cquity price 3.65% (3.65%) 0.39% (0.39%)
Fifect on equity B2,153,582 {R2,153,582) £2230,741 F230,741)

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital managemenl is to safeguard its ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue  provide returns to shareholders and benefits to othur
stakeholders and to maintain an aptimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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The Company manages its capitat structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in
economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to sharcholders, remurn capital to sharcholders or issue new sharcs. 'There were
no changes made in the oljectives, policies or processes in 20143 and 2012,

The Compeny considers the following as its capital.

2013 2012
Cupital stock £7,927,316,000 £7,927,310,000
Additional paid-in capital 2,039,727,799  2,039,727,799
Subscriptions receivable (4,962,580,386) (4.962,635,386)
Deficit (2,972,488,493)  (2,903,753.826)

$2,031,968,720 P2,040,628,387

Fair Value of Financial Asscts and Financial Liabilities

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the financial instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction berween knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s-length transaction, viher
than in a forced liquidation or sale. Fair values arc obtained from quoted market prices,
discounted cash flow models and option pricing moduls, as appropriate.

The carrving values of cash in bank, receivables and athers (excluding prepayments and input
VAT), and accrued expenses and other current liabilities (excluding statutory liabilities)
approximate their fair values duc o the short-term nature of the transactions.

The fair values of AFS financial assels in quoted equity shares are based on quoted prices in the
PSE or those shares whose prices are readily evailable from brokers or other regulatory agency as
at reporting date. There are no guoted market prices for the unlisted shares of stock and there are
no other reliable sources of their fair valnes, therefare, these are carried at cost, net of any
impairment Joss.

The following table provides the quantitative disclosures of fair value measurciment hierarchy of

the Campany’s assets and liabilities, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximation of fair value, as of December 31, 2013:

Farr Yilue Meusursment Lising

Quated
(Uzadjusted) Significunt
Priges in Swgaificant  Unobservable
Active Markets Obseovable Inpus Inputs
Date of NValuatinn [Level 1) (Leve| 2) (Level 3} Tonal
ARRets
Auseis micasured at fair value
AFS invesments - fisted Deeember 31, 3013 R190,933,700 el s F480,938,760
Liabilivics
Eiahilitses for which far
value is disslosed:
Payable arising from
wequisition of land Myecember 31, 2073 - PO 1879 = 176,011,479

The Company has no tinancial liabilities measured at fair value as at December 31, 2013 and
2012. There were no transfers between fair value measurements in 2013 and 2012,
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18. Sepment Information

The primary segment reporting format is presented based on business segments in which the
Company’s risks and rates of return are affected predominantly by differences in the products and
services provided. Thus, the operating businesses are vrganized and managed scparately
aceording to the nature of the preducts and services provided. with each segment representing a
strategic business unit that offers different produets and serves different markets.

The Company is organized into three business segments, which are investment holding, rea] estate
and public amusement recreation.

Financial information about the Company’s business segments arc shown below:

2013
Publi¢
Investment Amusement Elimtnationy/

Holding Real Estate and Recreation  Adjustments  Conseliduted
Earnings Informativn
Gam on liguidating dividend R B P | ] i
Interest income 1,043 - - - 1,043
Cosis and expenses (8,590,138) {20,845) (124.727) (8,735,710}
Net loss for the vear (8.589,095) {20,R45) (124,727) - (4,734,667
Other Information
AFS financial assets 1,713,501,943 42,.263.100 11,768,917 (186,713,130) 1,580,820,800
Segment ussets 464,146,291 766,884 19,086,544 (2,161,149) 486,838,570
Sepmens tiabilitics 147,293,210 513,643,369 1,028,510  (629,632,007) 232,333,082
Censolidated total assets 2,182,648,204 43,029,984 30,855,461  (188,874,279) 2,067,659,370
Censolidated total liabilitias 347,293210  S13,643.369 1,028,510  (629,632,007) 132,333,082

2012
Public
invesiment Amusement  Eliminations!

Holdinp Real Hsiate and Kecremtion  Adjustmenis  Consolidated
Karnings [nformation
Gain on liquidating dividend P31324175 P- B B-  B33,324,175
Interest income 1160 - - = 1,160
Costs and expenses 16.827,962) {47.295) {38421 = 16,011,678)
Pravision for impairment of AFS

financial assets (1,643,407 304) - - 58.318,988 ().585.088.316)

Wel logs Jor the vear (1,618,909,931) {47.255) (38,421} 58,118,988 {1,558,676.659})

Qther Information

ATS financial assuls P1.734.26) 883 P45§.524.300 1,646,523 (R183.111.090)RI,601,621,527
Segment ass2ts 195,336,647 7hh BR4 29,032,664 {100.136) 425,037,059
Sepment fichilitics 264,028,625 513,622,522 1,028,510 (817,307,753} 161,871,904
Consolidsted wtal wssets 2.129,598.451 49,201,134 30,980,187 {183,211,226) 2,026,658,596
Conselidared 1olal ligbilities 264 528 A2S 313,622,522 1,028,510  (617,707,753) 181,871,904
2011
Public
Invesiment Amussment  Eliminations/

i Helding Reat Exate_und Reereation  Adjusiments  Conspliduted
Karnings Information
Intgrest incomne P15 o P B RA1S
Costs and expenses (6,327,406} (72,125} (38.012) - (6,437,543}
Provision for impairment of

advanees 10 subsidiaries {16,584,011) - - 16,584,011 -
Frovision for impairment of AFS

financial assets (240.0001 - - - {240,000}
Net Joss far the year (23.150,802) {72,128) (38012 16,584,011 (6,676,928)

G ROk



o
Pubkin
Invesimen Amusement  Lliminations!
Holdine Rew Estate and Recreation  Adiustments  Corsolideied

Other Informartian

AF§ financial assels 3,313.184,618 533302018 1,946,524 [246,075.683) 3,122.252,636
Segment assets 144.34A.441 766,884 29,072,085 = 374183410
Negment liabilities A51,725,572 313,575,227 LA2NS10 (817,360,323) 153,758,98_6
Contafidazed lotal ussets 3.657,511,056 3 H87.084 3,618,609 {246,078,683) 3,496 438 066
Consolidated totai hubilities 261,725,572 S13.575.227 1,028,510 {617.560,323)  138.768,380

The following illustrate the reconciliations of reportable segment revenucs, net profit, assets and
liahilities to the Company's corresponding amounts:

2013 2012 a1l

Net Profit for the Year
Total profit for reportable segments (#8,735,710) (R!.616.995,647} (R6,676.928)
Elimination for intercompany prafits - 58,318,988 -
Consolidated net profit i (#8,735,710) (P1,558,676,659) (P6,676,928)
Assets
Toal assets for reportable scaments $£188,999,719 B425,157,195 p374.185,410
Investments and advances 1,767,533.930 1,784,732,627 1,368,331,339
Elimination for intercompany advances

and investments (188,974,279) _ (183.211,226)  (246,078.683)
Consolidated assets £2.067,659,370  P2,026,638,596 £3,406,438,066

Management monitors {he operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of
making decisions aboul resource allocation and perfonnance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on net income or loss and is measured consistently with net income or lass in the
consolidated Ninancial statements. However, financing (including interest expense and interest
income) and income taxes are managed as 2 whola and are not allocated to operating segments.
Transfer prices between operating segments are on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar 1o
transactions with third parties.

19.

Contingency

The Parent Company is a party tc a civil case filed by Metroplex before the CA 1o review the
February 26, 2009 Order of the SEC denying the Metruplex pstition to nullify the approval of the
reduction of the capital stock of the Parent Company (see Notes 2 and 12). The CA sustained the
ruling of the SEC, thus Metroples filud a petition for review with the SC. Asat March 11, 2014,
the Supreme Court has yel to reselve this petition.

Management and its legal counse] believe that the Parent Company has substantial legal and

factual bases for its position and are of the opinion that losses arising [rom the aforementionad
case, if any, will not have a material impact on the Company’s conselidated financial statements.
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20. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Infermation

In 2013, the principal noncash investing activity pertain to Belle's delivery of developed lots to
Sinophil with estimated value of 265.5 million, exclusive of input value added tax of 7.9 miilion,
as partial settlernent for the cancellation of prefermed shares (see Nowe 13),

In 20172, the principal nencash investing activitics inciude offsetting of subscription payments for
P g £ >

Belle shares against advances 1o Belle amounting lo R42.8 million (see Notc 9), and receipt of
liquidating dividend in the form of land valued al P108.7 million (see Note 10).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT
OXN SUPPLEMENTARY SCIIEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Sinophil Corporation

Sth Floot, Tower A

I'wo E-Com Center, Palm Coast Avenue
Mall of Asia Complex, CBP-1A. Pasay City

We have audited in aceordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the consolidated financial
statements of Sinophil Corporation anil Subsidiaries as at and for each of the Lhrec vears in the period
ended December 31, 2013, included in this Torm 17-A, and have issucd our report thereon daled
March 11, 2014. Qur audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic tinancial
statements tzken as a whole. The schedules listed in the Index 1o Consolidated Financial Statements
and Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. These schedules
are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended
(2011) and arc not part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic [inaucial statements and, in our opinion, fairly

state, in all material respects, the information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic
financiaf statements taken as o whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Clairma 'I'. Manganges
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 36398
SEC Acereditation No. 0779-AR-1 (Group A).
February 2, 2012, valid until February 1. 2013
Tax Identification No. 129-334-867
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-67.1012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2013
PI'R No. 4225188, January 2, 2014, Makan City

March 11,2014
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Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries
Index o Supplementary Schedules
Form 17-A, item 7
As at December 31, 2013

supplementary Schedules
A, Financial Assets

B. Amounts of receivables frem Directors, Officers, Employees and Principal Stockholders
{other than related parties)

€. Amounts of Receivables from Related Farties which aie Eliminated during the Consolidation of Financist
Statements.

D. intangible Assets - Other Assets

E. Long-term Debt

F. indebtedness to Related Parties

G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers
H. Capital Stock

|. Reconcihation of Retained Earnings Avallable for Dividend Declaration

I. Key Financial Ratios




Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries
Schedule A - Financial Assets
As at December 31, 2013

Name of Issuing Entity and Association

Amount shown in the

Income received and

of sach use Balance Sheet accrued

Cash 925,039 1,043
Receivebles and others 26,201,795
AFS Investments

Eguisy Invesiments Legend Internztional Resorls HK = -

Sguity Investments Belle Corporation {Preferred Shares) 1,900,660,000 -

Equity Investments Tagaytay Midlands Golf Clud 88,800,000 -

Equity Invastments gelis Corporation [Cammon Snares) 490,913,700

Foulty invesumenis Tagayray Hignlands Int't Golf Club 1,000,000 .

Eguiy invesimants Helle Bay City -

Equity Investments Asian Petroleumn 11,100 -

Equity Investments PLOT 70,600

Equity Investments Metro Manita Turf Cuh -

1.580,820,800 -

Total Financial Assets

1,607,947,638




Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries
Schedule B - Amounts of Receivables from Directars, Officers and Employees
As at December 31, 2013

- Fe ] -, E ~ i " L . - Balanice at
Marne and Deslgnation of |. © Balance atthe - . .| amounts | © Amounzs P Al _ |tha erid of the
the Debtor Beglnning of the Year Addizlons - - | Collected | - Written OFf Current NotfCurrent | perfod
Empleyees
Qrficers Net Apglicable
Birectors




Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries

Schedule €. Amounts of Receivables from Related Parties

As at December 31, 2013

Balance at Balznce a5 at Amount
Nama of Subsidiary | January1, 2043 Additions | December31,2013" Reclassificatlon Current Not current Ellminated
e B 35148585 50,845 520,190,432 - 529,150,451 B S20.100,422
LR 1,011,313 - * 711,516 - 1615510 1011818
523,201,515 421,301,941

522,568,005 a0.345 521,201,541




Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries
Schedule D. Intangible Assets
As at December 31, 2013

Description

Beginning
Balance

Additions at
Cost

Charged to cost
and expenses

Chargad to other
Accounts

Orhar Changes and |’

Additions

Ending Balance

Not Applicable




Sinophll Corporation and Subsidisries
schedule E, Long Term Debt
As at December 31, 2013

Balance ot
Amgunt Authorized by December Current Portion of tong Non Current Portlorof | Interest | Amount and Number of Periodic
ndenture 31, 2012 Term Dabt {ong Term Debt Rate Payments
b of lesue
ind Type of | (In Original {In Original (In Qriginal {in Originat |{{Approxin Periedic | Materity i
Obligutian Currency) | (in PhP) Gurrency) (tn PRP} Currency) {in PhP) Currency) PhP) Payments Date

Nat Applicabis




Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries
Schedule F. Indebtedness to Related Parties

As at December 31, 2013
Balance at the Beginning of the | - Balance atthe End of Pertod
3 . o |- ‘ Year : -‘Noncurrent
Name of Related Parties Noncurrent
Belle Corporation 105,650,145 179,011,579

105,650,145 179,011,579




Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers

Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries

As at December 31, 2013

Name of Issuing Entity of
Securltles Guarantead by
the Company for which
this statement Is filed

Title of 1ssue of Each
» Class of Securities
Guaranteed

Total Amount
Guarenteed
~and i
Qutstanding,

Amount Owned by
Person far Whigh
“the Statement Is
Filed

Nature of
Guarantee

Not Applicable




Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries
H. Capital Stocks
As at December 31, 2013

! Number

) Number of Rumber of Number of Numbei of | Directors and

i Numnber of Shares Izsued Saares Shares raserved | SharesHeldby | Key Executive

; Tine of lsgua Shares Authorized | and Qutstanding Subscribed far steck rights | Raefated Parias Offlcer Others
Common Statks 14,130.03C,C0C 3,095.55C,785  4,830,319.215 4,761,334,336 20,012 3,163,979,664

‘Perzentage Held 60.08E% 0.505% 39.912%

iPreferred Sharas
{Percentage Held

£.000.20C,CC0




Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries
Schedule I. Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend
Declaration
As at December 31, 2013

NOT APPLICABLE




Sinophil Corporation and Subsidiaries
Schedule I. Key Financial Ratios
As at December 31, 2013 and 2012

Manner by which the key performance

indicators are computed

2013

2012

Current ratio

Current assats
Current Liabilitizs

1.74:1.00

0.55:1.00

Return on assets

Met joss
Average Total assets
during the period

(0.43%)

(56.78%)

Return on equity

Net loss
Average gquity
during the period

(0.47%)

(60.28%)

Asset-to-equity ratio

|Total Assets

Total Equity

1,13:1.00

1.09:1.00

Debt 10 equity ratio

Total Debt
Total Equity

Not applicable

Not applicable

Interest rate
coverage ratio

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes 1

Interest Expense

Mot applicable

Not applicable

—




SINOPUIL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

List of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and
Interpretations Effective as 2( December 31, 2013

EHIRIERINSRIN NI T REPORTN N DVARDSH
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Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Statements ! v .
| Conceprual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative i !
i characteristics |

PFRSs Practice Statement }anagement Commentary ; v :

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

‘PFRS 1 Firsi-time adoption of Philinpine Finanstal Reporing 7
, (Revised) Standards i

JAmendments 1o PPRS 1 and PAS 27 Cost ofan
| invesrment in 2 Subsidiary, Jomtly Controlled Entity or v
- Assariate

| First-time Adoprers

g.ﬁmendmem to PFRS 1. Limited Exemption from
“Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-tirne <
Adopters

| Amendments to PFRS [ Severe Hyperinflauon and
| Remowvai of Fixed Date for Firg-rime Adopters

|
l I Amendments to P'FRS 1: Additional Exemptions for ¥
!
%
t

‘Amendmenis to PFRS |0 Government Loans

I )
] CAmendment o PFRS 1 Muaning of Effective PFRSs”

'PFRS 2 | Share-based Pavinent
: E.-’srlzcndzu-.:nl:«: tir PFRE 21 Visting Conditjonys and
Cancellations
! X
| i Amendmemts 1o PFRS 2: CGroup Cash-settled Share- i
: ' s | v
; 'based Paynwem Transactions :
: | Amendment to PFRS 2: Definition of Vesting i L
! : Condition® ;
IPFRS 3 | Business Combinations ; ; <
) Riinel] " Amendient w PERS 3. Accounting for Continpen: e i
' Consideration in a Business Combination* :
H t
! Amendment to PFRS 3: Scope Exceptions lor Juim o
i i ATTARgremenis®
PFRS 4 ‘Ingurance Contracts E
Ameadmenis to PAS 39 and PFRS &: Finaneial {
Guarantee Contracts
PFRS £ Non-¢urtent Assets Heid for Sale and Discontinued 7
; | Operations
7
iPFRE ¢ i Bxploration for and Evaluatien of Mineral Resources v
'PFRS 7  Financial Instruments: Disclosures v oo |
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Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassificauon 7
of Financial Assels {
Amendments 10 PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassifeation 7
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transiiion ;
Amendments 1o PFRS 7- Improving Disclosuras about /
Finaricial Tnstruments
| Amendments to PERS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of 7
‘Financial Assers
Amendments 1o PFRS 70 Disclosures - Offseting y i B |
 Finuntiul Assets and Finuncial Liabiltties ; f
' Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Etfective Date of i
PFRE 9 and Transition Disclosures
PFRS 8 Operating Segments J l
Amendments to PFRS 8: Aggregation of Operating I
Segments and Reconciliation of the Total of the o
Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Eatity's Assets* |
L
:PFRS % Financial Instruments * e ;
; Amendmanis to PFRS 9: Mandatory Rffective Date of ! 7
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures* |
PFRS 10  |Consolidated Financial Statements i &
Amendmenls 1o PERS 10: Investment Entitigs® I e
PFRS 11 Joint Arrangemenis 4 v
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitics v 1 d
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Bntities® i e |
PFRS13 | Fair Value Measurement - i
Amendment to PFRS 13; Short-terin Receivables und s ‘
Payables~ | ;
t Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception* v ! :
Philippine Accaunting Standzrds i
PAS1 | Presentation of Financial Statements « v E
evised f B ] ‘
£ ) -Amendment 10 PAS 1: Capital Disclosures | ¢ :
fAmendmems to PAS 32 and PAS 1; Puttable Finarcial E 7
+ Insmuments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation ] ! |
"Amendments to PAS 1. Presentation of tens of Qther l 7 ; ;
Comprehensive Income 1 ;
I'asz Inventaries 2 7
—
PAS T | Staternent of Cash Flows i v
FAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changas in Accounting Estimates 1 !
wnd Errors j i
PAS 10 Events alter the Reporting Period f
! =R Sy A
PAS I Consmruction Contracts i v i

[[®]
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PAS 12 Income Taxes i v E
| amendment 1o PAS 12 - Deftrred Tax: Recovery of 7
Uinderlying Assets i
PAS 16 | Property, Plant umd Equipment i f s E
. Amendment to PAS 16: Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulared v
Drepreciation®
PAS 17 Leases |
PAS 18 Revenue o
PAS 19 Employwe Benefits ve
Amendrments ta PAS 19; Actuarial Guins wid Losses, 7
Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 19 [ mployec Bunefits v
(ameriing) Amendments Lo PAS 19; Defined Benefit Plans: &= ] i
Lmployee Contribution®
PAS 20 Accrunling for Government Grants and Disclesure of v
Government Assistance
PaS 21 ‘The Effects of Changes in Foraign Exchange Rates ! v
| Amendment: Net Invesiment in a Forgign Operation <
PAS 23 Barmrwing Costs 7
(Revised)
PAS 24 felated Party Disclosures ; v
(s : Amendments 30 PAS 24: Key Management Personae! S
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Reurement Benefit Plang , v
PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financiul Stateniants v |
BaSi2E Separate Financial Statemants v
A i
(mchee Amendments 1o PAS 27: tnvestiment Entines* v
PAS 28 Investments in Associates v '
PAS 28 | Inveslments in Associates and Joint Ventures "
(Amernded)
PAS 29 Financial Reperting in Hyperinflativnary Economies v
PAS 31 Interests in Juint Ventures v
r
PAS 32 Financi] Instruments; Disclosure and Presentation v ’
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Punable Financial Y,
instrurmnenis and Obligations Arising on Liguidation i
’ Amendmant 1o PAS 32: Classification of Rights lssues v
Amendmenis 1o PAS 32, Offsetting Financial Asscts v
and Financial Tiabilities
Amendments 1o PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets .
' and Financiat Liabilities* 1 :
PAS 33 | Earnings per Share s !

i
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Inierim Financial Reporting

| PAS 36

: Impairment of Assets

Amendments o PAS 36: Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets™

PAS 37

! Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Contingent
Asgels

,[PAS 38

(ntangible Assets

Amendments to PAS 33 Revaluation Method -
Propottionate Restatement »f Aceumnulated
Amortization®

PAS 39

Financial lnstrumants: Recognition and Measurament

Amendments to PAS 3%: Transition und Initial
Recognition of Financial Asssts and Financial
Liabilities

Amendmenis to PAS 39; Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Forecast Intrugroup Transactions

! Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments 10 PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financial
Guarantea Contrecis

Amendments w PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assels

Anendments 1o PAS 39 ard PFRS 7: Re¢lassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition 5

Amendiments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC- 9 and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedeed Kems

Amendments to PAS 39: Novarion of Derivatives and
' Continuation of Hedge Accounting®

PAS 40

Investment Property

Amendments 10 PAS 40 Clarifying the
Interrelationship between PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when

Classifying Property as [nvestment Property or Owner-
Occupied Property*

J*

PAS 41

Agriculture




P T i on 3 b kNS
J ST AR YR DS AT 4
T NG b3}

PEILE RO BN GL
TREER BRSNS A AT

SEficctiveins Sl EcCIo DEROL; 2115
AR I e e BT o i

i fefadiin} N THLCH mm}
{|

|T’I|ilippine Interprelations _
EERIC 1 ! Changes in Existing Deconunissioning, Restoration and 7
Similar Liabilities N 5
IFRIC 2 Memnhers' Share in Co-operative Entities and Similar : v |
Instregsients !
1IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease v
IFRIC & Rights to Interests nrising from Decommissioning, s
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Liahilities arising from Participating in a Specific %
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment
IFRIC 7 Applying th: Restatement Approach upnder PAS 29 "
Finuncial Reporting in 1iyperinflationary Economies
(IFRIC & Scope of PTRS 2 | v
1FRIC 9 Reassesement of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments 10 Philippine Interpresation FFRIC—9 and v
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Finangial Reporting and Impairment v
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2- Group and Treasury Share Transactions v
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangrments : v
1IFRIC 13 Customer Lovalty Progranimies <
IFRIC 14 | The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asser, Minimum . ,
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments 1o Phitippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, !
X o 1 ; v
Prepayments of a Minimum Fuading Requirement
IFRIC 15 ' Agreements for the Constructiun of Real Estate* b o :
IFRIC 16 | Hedges of 2 Net Investment in a Foreign Opuration T
IFRTC 17 Distributions of Non-¢ash Assers fo Dwners g
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
HIFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity =
‘ Instruments !
{FRIC 20  Stripping Costs in the Production. Phase of a Surface |
Mine* 7
TFRIC 21 Levivs (TFRIC 21)* S
S1C-7 5 Introduction of the Eure v
SI1C-10 Governmen! Assistanae - No Specific Relation to B
: Operating Activitivs
SIC-12 | Consolidation - Special Purpose Eintitics <
Amendment w SIC - 12; Scope of SIC 12 v
SIC-13 Jointly Contrelled Entities - Non-Monulary 7
Contributions by Venturers
SIC-15 ]Operating Leases - Incentives S !
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axes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Eng Vs
or His Shareholders
| SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transaclions Involving the ‘ . g
Lezal Form of a Lease
S1C-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures v |
1S10-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Invelving Advertising J |
Services
S1C-32 ; Intangible Assets - Web Sie Costs | ) 7 |

" Noi gerly Adopied
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